
 
 

1 
 

 City of Detroit 

CITY COUNCIL 
LEGISLATIVE POLICY DIVISION 
208 Coleman A. Young Municipal Center  

Detroit, Michigan 48226 
Phone:  (313) 224-4946   Fax:  (313) 224-4336 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

TO: The Honorable Detroit City Council 
 
FROM: David Whitaker, Director 
 Legislative Policy Division (LPD) Staff 
 
DATE: April 6, 2021   

 
RE: Port Authority Master Concession Agreement Termination 
 
Council Member Castañeda-López requested that the Legislative Policy Division analyze and 
report on the attached document from the Detroit/Wayne County Port Authority (DWCPA) 
entitled “Resolution to Enter into Termination Agreement Regarding the Master Concession 
Agreement, Discharge and Release of Promissory Note, Agreement for Purchase and Sale, 
Termination Agreement Regarding the Springing Interest Agreement, and Termination Agreement 
Regarding Subconcession Agreement”.   
 
Short Answer 
 
This document was presented by the City Clerk, as attachments to a written communication from 
the Detroit/Wayne County Port Authority (DWCPA), directly to City Council, apparently without 
any involvement of the executive branch of City Government.   Numerous transactional documents 
were transmitted to City Council by DWCPA for its consideration and action.  These documents 
came to City Council without first having been considered and thoroughly vetted by the executive 
branch of City government.  This is improper.  Section 5-102 of the City Charter vests the 
executive power of the City in the Mayor.  Core parts of that Charter-mandated executive power 
include the powers to evaluate, prioritize, negotiate, document and draft agreements like this first, 
before seeking Council’s consideration and assent.   
 
City Council, under its Charter-mandated duty to approve transactions involving City property, 
Sections 4-112, 4-122, etc., lacks power to independently approve transactions such as have been 
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proposed by the DWCPA without the Mayor’s prior actual involvement in negotiation, evaluation, 
assessment and concurrence proposed directly to City Council, without the Mayor’s involvement.  
Therefore, Council cannot act on the proposed document at this time, pursuant to the Charter.  
Council may wish to seek the Law Department’s formal opinion on this issue. 
 
Summary of Document 
 
Notwithstanding its procedural impropriety, the attached document at issue consists of 29 pages.  
It purports to document a real property transaction involving sale of the DWCPA’s property on 
the Detroit River downtown to the Ambassador Port Company, one of the Maroun family 
companies embedded in border commerce between Detroit and Windsor.  As indicated by the 
document’s title, this real property sale would trigger termination of the Master Concession 
Agreement (MCA), pursuant to which the Maroun family corporations have historically been 
granted monopolistic power over development and commercial interests affecting border 
commerce.1  Key material terms include: 
 

• Termination of the MCA and discharge of the DWCPA’s promissory note executed 
concurrently with it; 

• Sale of certain specified riverfront real estate around Nicholson Terminal and Dock 
Company to Ambassador for $5 million, disbursed as specified in the agreement, rather 
than funds received by the City.  The addresses to be sold are 4300 West Jefferson, 4461 
West Jefferson, and 4500 West Jefferson; 

• Escrowed funds from the above sale will be applied to half the cost of demolishing the 
Boblo Building, and up to 35% of the cost of engineering repairs associated with the 
property; 

• Closing on the Purchase Agreement is contingent on mutually acceptable termination 
agreements of the MCA, the Subconcession Agreement, and the Promissory Note; 

• The resolution was approved by a 4-1 vote of the Wayne County Commission, filed with 
the City Clerk and submitted directly to City Council, which is improper and void under 
the City Charter;  

• None of these copies of the agreements are signed; and 
• The resolution is attached to a Termination Agreement (3 pages), a Discharge and Release 

of Promissory Note (1 page), and Agreement for Purchase and Sale (14 pages), another 
Termination Agreement of the Subconcession Agreement (3 pages), and a Termination of 
Springing Interest Agreement (3 pages). 

 
These documents were carefully drafted.  The main question is to whose benefit?  Whether or not 
the City’s position will be improved by such transactions is the basic issue.   As LPD has previously 
advised Council regarding such documents, there is no substitute for the opportunity to 
communicate directly with the attorneys responsible for handling the transaction.  If this document 
is ever properly submitted to Council, Your Honorable Body may wish to schedule such a 
discussion with DWCPA attorneys, and perhaps also a closed session with the Law Department. 
                                                 
1 LPD and others have historically criticized the MCA, the springing interest and other related issues.  There may well 
be good reasons to terminate the MCA, but the question is: Is this the way?  Given the fact that the we are in this 
position with this agreement, the proposed transaction that ultimately disentangles the City from this situation requires 
careful scrutiny to avoid repeating the same or similar mistakes.  
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However, as noted above, at this time Council cannot properly act on the proposed resolution under 
the Charter because it has been submitted independently to the legislative body by DWCPA, 
excluding the Mayor from performing his Charter-mandated role in such transactions.  
 
If Council has any other question or concerns regarding this subject, LPD will be happy to provide 
further research and analysis upon request. 
 
         




























































